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  Managing Director's Message to Stakeholders 
 

Progress for me has never been a dream, it has always been a distant 
reality and once one milestone is achieved, there is always another 
one waiting to be crossed. It gives me immense pleasure to share 
with you the progress and the  performance of the Company for the 
F.Y. 2021-22. As compared to the last year company has made more 
profits. While                       year 2021-22 is a year of extreme economic challenges 
for the world, a situation aggravated almost beyond measure by the  
unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic, your Company continued to 
play on its strengths and posted almost stable financial performance. 
 

I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to each and every team member of Bhakti Gems 
and Jewellery Limited for their relentless efforts, who have responded beyond their call of 
duty during unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic. Our teams have demonstrated a strong 
sense of responsibility and have ensured that we continue with business as usual, despite the 
hardship. 

 
 

Warm Regards,  
Mr. Akshay Mehta  
Managing Director 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

  

 

NOTICE OF 12TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 12th Annual General Meeting of the members of Bhakti Gems and 
Jewellery Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Thursday, the 29th day of September, 2022 at 
11:00 A.M. at the registered office of the Company situated at 209, Shree Balaji Paragon, B/s Rock 
Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, Near Circle - P, C. G. Road, Ahmedabad- 380009, Gujarat, India to 
transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2022 including audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date 
together with Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Varshaben Akshaykumar Mehta (DIN: 02988112), who 

retires by rotation and , being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 
 

3. To appoint the Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration and in this 
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof) and pursuant to the 
recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, M/s. Bharat & Co., 
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 117365W), be and are hereby appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for term of 5 (five) years, to hold office from the conclusion 
of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 17th Annual General Meeting to be held 
in the year 2027, at a remuneration of 40,000.00 /- (Rupees Fourty Thousand Only) per annum, 
with the power to the Board/ Audit Committee to alter and vary the terms and conditions of 
appointment, revision including upward revision in the remuneration during the remaining 
tenure of four years, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the 
Statutory Auditors.” 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the director of the company, be and is hereby authorised to 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 

 
                        SPECIAL BUSINESS:-  

 
4. To alter the Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 4, 13 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof 
for the time being in force) read with Rules framed thereunder subject to approval of Registrar 
of Companies, Ahmedabad (hereinafter referred to as ‘ROC’) and / or any other regulatory or 
statutory authority as may be necessary, the consent of the members of the company be and 
hereby accorded to insert following sub clause 2 after existing sub clause 1 of clause III (A) of 
the Memorandum of Association of the Company:   
 



 

  

  

2. To carry on the business of Builders, Masoners and General Construction and Contractors 
and to carry on the business of the proprietors of lands, flats, maisonetes, dwelling houses, 
shops, offices, industrial estates, lessees of lands, flats and other immoveable properties and 
for these purposes to purchase, take on lease or otherwise acquire and hold any lands or 
buildings of any tenure or description wherever situated, or rights or interests therein or 
connected therewith, to prepare building sites, and to construct, reconstruct, pull down, 
renovate, develop, alter, improve, decorate and furnish and maintain flats, hotels, malls, 
educational institutes, hospitals, maisonettes, dwelling houses, shops, offices, buildings, 
industrial estates, works and conveniences, and sell the same on ownership basis, 
installment basis or loose basis and rental basis and transfer such buildings to co-operative 
societies, limited companies, bodies corporate or association of persons or individuals as 
the case may be, to lay out roads and pleasure gardens and recreation grounds to plant, drain 
or otherwise improve the land or any part thereof and to promote, operate and manage 
various immoveable properties and other real estate assets, and to develop, acquire and 
invest, either directly or indirectly, in income producing immoveable properties in India and 
to also undertake development and maintenance of infrastructure projects in all areas of 
infrastructure including but not limited to facilities such as road, power, water and 

industrial infrastructure.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby, severally 
authorised to sign, execute and file necessary application, forms, deeds, documents and writings 
as may be necessary for and on behalf of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as may be deemed necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this 
resolution and to delegate all or any of the powers conferred herein as they may deem fit.” 
 

5. Re-Appointment Of Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta (DIN:02986761), As A Managing Director of 
The Company w.e.f 01st December, 2021:  
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V and rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), 
the relevant provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of the 
Company and subject to such other approval as may be necessary, the consent of the members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta 
(DIN:02986761) as Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 3 (three) years 
w.e.f. December 1, 2021, liable to retire by rotation, upon the terms and conditions as set out in 
the Explanatory Statement annexed to the notice convening this annual general meeting, with 
authority / liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the 
said re-appointment in such manner as may be agreed between the Board of Directors and Mr. 
Akshay Sevantilal Mehta.” 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the director of the company, be and is hereby authorised to 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 
 

6. Change in designation of Mr. Meet Prafulchandra Mehta (DIN: 007542183) from Non-Executive 
Director to Executive Director as Whole Time Director of the Company: 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following Resolution 
as an Special Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 152, 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
any other applicable provisions thereof and the rules made there under (including any statutory 



 

  

  

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the change in designation of Mr. Meet Prafulchandra 
Mehta (DIN: 007542183) from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director, Whole Time 
Director of the Company with effect from 12th October, 2021, liable to retire by rotation , upon 
the terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the notice 
convening this annual general meeting, with authority / liberty to the Board of Directors to alter 
and vary the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment in such manner as may be agreed 
between the Board of Directors and Mr. Meet Prafulchandra Mehta.”  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the director of the company, be and is hereby authorised to 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 
 

7. Regularisation of as Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN No. 09726936 ) an Independent 
Director of the Company.  

 
                               To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution                       
                                as an Special Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN No. 09726936 ) who was appointed by 
the Board of Directors as an Additional Independent Director of the Company effective Monday, 
September 5, 2022 in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and who is 
eligible for appointment and has consented to act as an Independent Director of the Company 
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under 
Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director of the 
Company, be and is hereby appointed Independent Director of the Company.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act and the Rules framed there under read with Schedule IV to the Act 
as amended from time to time, Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN No. 09726936 ), who meets 
the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who has submitted a 
declaration to that effect, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 5 years commencing September 29 2022 
to September 28, 2027. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the director of the company, be and is hereby authorised to 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 
 

8. Regularisation of Mr. Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 09406867) as an Independent Director of the 
Company  
 

               To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following Resolution as   
                an Special Resolution:  

 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 09406867) who was appointed by the Board of 
Directors as an Additional Independent Director of the Company effective Monday, November 
22, 2021 in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and who is eligible for 
appointment and has consented to act as an Independent Director of the Company and in respect 
of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the 
Act proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director of the Company, be and is 
hereby appointed a Independent Director of the Company.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act and the Rules framed there under read with Schedule IV to the Act 
as amended from time to time, Mr. Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 09406867), who meets the criteria 



 

  

  

for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who has submitted a declaration 
to that effect, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable 
to retire by rotation, for a term of 5 years commencing September 29 2022 to September 28, 
2027. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the director of the company, be and is hereby authorised to 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 

 
 

               Place: Ahmedabad                                                           BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 
                               Date: 05thSeptember, 2022                                          BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 

                 
      Registered Office                                                                                   SD/- 

   209, Shree Balaji Paragon,                                                         Akshay S. Mehta 
   B/S Rock Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank,                             Managing Director 

                             Near Circle - P, C.G. Road,                                                 [DIN: 02986761] 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            Ahmedabad 380009 Gujarat 

    
    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                    

 
 

 
NOTES 
 
1. MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT 

A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY IN ORDER TO BE 
EFFECTIVE MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT 
LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A person can act 
as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate not more than 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. 

 
2. Members/Proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip at the Annual General Meeting 

along with the Annual Report already circulated to them. Duplicate admission slips and or copies 
of the report and accounts will not be provided at the AGM venue. 

 
3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) pursuant to section 

113 of the Companies Act 2013 to attend the Meeting are requested to send a certified copy of 
the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the 
Meeting. A person authorized by resolution under Section 113(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
shall be entitled to exercise the same rights and powers, including the right to vote by proxy, on 
behalf of the body corporate which he/she represents. 

 
4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and 
Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 23rd September, 2022 
to Thursday, 29th September, 2022 (Both days inclusive). 

 
5. Members seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the 

Company at least 10 days before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the 
information ready. 

 
6. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order 

of names will be entitled to vote. 
 
7. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their addresses and/or the Bank 

Mandate details to the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, SKYLINE FINANCIAL 
SERVICES PVT. LTD for shares held in physical form and to their respective Depository 
Participants (DP) for shares held in electronic form. 

 
8. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (vide circular nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21, 2011 

and April 29, 2011 respectively) has undertaken a “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” 
and allowed companies to share documents with its shareholders through an electronic mode. 
The Stock Exchanges permits companies to send soft copies of the Annual Report to all those 
shareholders who have registered their email address for the said purpose. Members are 
requested to support this Green Initiative by registering / updating their email address for 
receiving electronic communication. 
 

9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 & the Register of Contracts or arrangements in 
which the Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 
will be made available for inspection by the members at the AGM venue during the continuance 
of the meeting. 

 
10. All the Documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection at the registered office of the 

Company between 11 A.M. to 5.00 P.M on any working day prior to the day of meeting and will 
also be available at the meeting venue on the date of meeting. 

 
 

11. Procedure of Voting at the AGM 
 

In addition to the remote e-voting facility as described below, the company shall arrange voting 



                                    

 
 

facility at the venue of AGM through Ballot Paper and the members attending the meeting, who 
have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting, will be able to exercise their right at the 
meeting. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may attend 
the meeting, but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. Members will need to write on the 
ballot paper, inter alia, relevant Folio No., DP ID & Client ID and number of shares held etc. 

 
12. E-Voting Facility: 
 
a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of  the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), the 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 8 April 2020, 13 April 2020 and 5 
May 2020 and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI, as 
amended, the Company is pleased to provide to the members the facility of ‘remote e-voting’ (e-
voting from a place other than venue of AGM) to exercise their vote at the 12th AGM and 
accordingly business as mentioned in this Notice shall be transacted through e-voting. 
Necessary arrangements have been made by the Company with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) as the Authorised e-voting agency for facilitating voting through electronic 
means. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as e-voting system      
on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. The Company has appointed Shikha Patel & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS: 43955; CP No: 16201), to act 
as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e- voting process as well as the e-voting system on 
the date of the AGM, in a fair and                                                          transparent manner. 

 
b) Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 

Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Thursday, September 22, 
2022, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting system. A person who is not a 
member as on the cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose only. 

 
13. The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:  

 
The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, September 26, 2022 at 09:00 A.M. 
and ends on Wednesday, September 28, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in 
the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 
Thursday, September 22, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of 
shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of 
the Company as on the cut-off date, being Thursday, September 22, 2022. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode 
 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility. 



                                    

 
 

 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 
below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to 
see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be 
able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  
Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 
 

 



                                    

 
 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can 
login through their user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also 
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to 
cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegist
ration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate 
the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants 

 
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period  

 
 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 
use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 



                                    

 
 

 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 

below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 



                                    

 
 

 
 
 
 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 
 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle  

retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 
 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf 
file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned 
below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are 
not registered.  

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 
 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in 

your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical 
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 

send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 
etc. 

 
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 

the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 
selecting on the check box. 
 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 



                                    

 
 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period  

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 
the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote. 

 
 

General Guidelines for shareholders 
 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory (ies) who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs.spatelasso@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 
Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 
Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 
30  or send a request to Ms. Sarita Mote at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 
 
 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the 
depositories/ company for procuring user id and password and registration of e 
mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 
a) In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
compliancebhakti@gmail.com. 



                                    

 
 

 
b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 

or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (compliancebhakti@gmail.com). If you are an 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer 
to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
 

c) Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 

d) In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed 
to vote through their demat account maintaitinizened with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
14. The Scrutiniser after conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the 

meeting and unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in presence of at least 
two witnesses not in the employment of the company and shall make within 48 
hours of the conclusion of the AGM a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against or invalid votes, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of 
the Company or any other director or person authorised, who shall countersign the 
same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 
15. The results so declared along with Scrutiniser’s Report shall be placed on the 

Company’s website 
 

i.e   www.bhaktijewellery.com and on the website of NSDL i.e. www.nsdl.co.in and 
shall also  be disseminated on the website of Stock Exchanges, where the 
Company’s shares are listed. 

 
16. Members holding shares in electronic form must inform about change in address to 

their respective Depository Participant only and not to the Company or the 
Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent. 

 
17. Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report at the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                    

 
 

 
 

 
       Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 

2013 
          
        The following statement sets out all material facts relating to the business 

mentioned in the notice: 
 
         Item No. 3 
         The Board of Directors in the Board Meeting held on 15th April, 2022 and the 

member of the company by Extra Ordinary General Meeting (Postal Ballot) 
on 12th June 2022, appointed M/s. Bhagat & Co, as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company for the financial year 2022-2023 to fill the casual vacancy 
caused by the resignation of M/s. Parth Shah & Associates., till the conclusion 
of this Annual General Meeting. 

 
        The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’), on the recommendation 

of the Audit Committee (‘the Committee’), recommended for the approval of 
the Members, the appointment of M/s. Bhagat & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration Number: 127250W) for remuneration of Rs 40,000.00 per 
annum as the Auditors of the Company for a period of five years from the 
conclusion of this AGM until the conclusion of the Sixth consecutive Annual 
General Meeting thereafter. 

 
        The Committee considered various parameters and found M/s. Bhagat & Co., 

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 127250W) to be best 
suited to handle the audit of the financial statements of the Company M/s. 
Bhagat & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 127250W) 
have given their consent to act as the Auditors of the Company and have 
confirmed that the said appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the 
conditions prescribed under Sections 139 and 141 of the Act. As required 
under SEBI Regulations, M/s. Bhagat & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration Number: 127250W) have confirmed that they hold valid 
certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.  

  
        None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their 

relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
this resolution. This statement may also be regarded as an appropriate 
disclosure under the Listing Regulations. 

 
       The Board of Directors recommends the ordinary resolution set out in item 

no. 3 for your approval. 
 
        Brief profile / credentials of M/s. Bhagat & Co.:  
         
        M/s. Bhagat & Co., Chartered Accountants has experience of 37 years and 

they have dedicated team of professionals capable of offering services across 
a range of disciplines. 

 



                                    

 
 

       M/s. Bhagat & Co., Chartered Accountants, is registered with the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (Firm Registration No. 127250W) and has 
subjected themselves to peer review process of Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review 
Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
        The registered office of the Firm is at 24, Laxmi Chambers, Navjeevan Pres 

Road, Nr. Old High Court, Income Tax, Ahmedabad - 380014. 
 

                             Item No 4 
 
                             To alter the Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the   
                             Company: 
 

The Principal business of the Company is manufacturing and selling 
Jewellery, Gems and Watches as per Sub Clause 1 of Clause III (A) of the 
Memorandum of the Company. 

 
The company propose to undertake activity in the real estate business in the best 
interest of the company.  
 
In order to commence the aforesaid business, it is required to amend the Main 
Objects under the Objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company 
by inserting sub clause 2 after existing sub clause 1 of clause III (A) which would be 
subject to approval of Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad and / or any regulatory 
or statutory authority as may be necessary. 
 
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on Monday, September 5, 2022 have 
approved the alteration of the Memorandum of Association of the Company and now 
it is proposed for the approval of the shareholders in terms of Section 4 and 13 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. During the normal business hours on all working days 
upto the date of the meeting, a copy of the Memorandum and Article of Association 
together with the proposed alteration is available for inspection by the Members of 
the Company at its Registered Office. 

  
 None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons (KMPs) of the Company or any       
relatives  of such Director or KMPs, shall be considered in any way, concerned or   
 interested,  financially or  otherwise in the Special Resolution. 

                                 
                                 The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Item No. 4 of the      

         Notice for approval of the Members. 
 
        Item No. 5.  
 
        The members, at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held 

on December 30, 2016, had approved the appointment of Mr. Akshay 
Sevantilal Mehta, as Managing Director for a period of five years effective 
from December 30, 2016 to  December 29, 2021. Accordingly, on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration committee of the 
Company, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on December 1, 2021, 
has re-appointed Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta as Managing Director for a 
further period of three years w.e.f. December 1, 2022, subject to approval of 
members. The brief profilr of Mr. Akshay Sevatilal Mehta is given in this 



                                    

 
 

notice in compliance with Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting. 

 
        The key terms and conditions of his re-appointment are as under: 
 

1. Nature of duties:  
Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta, shall, subject to the supervision 
and control of the Board, be entrusted with substantial powers 
of management and also perform such duties as may from time 
to time be entrusted to him. 

2. Remuneration: Not exceeding Rs. 12,00,000.00 
3. Minimum Remuneration:  

Where, in any financial year, the Company has no profit or its 
profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. Akshay 
Sevantilal Mehta in respect of such financial year, remuneration 
by way of salary, allowance, perquisites and other benefits 
subject to further approvals as required under Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 as existing or modified or re-enacted from 
time to time. 

4. The terms and conditions of the said reappointment may be 
altered and varied from time to time by the Board as it may, in 
its discretion, deem fit, subject to such approvals as may be 
required. 

 
Statement containing the information as required under Section-II, Part-II of 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 

 
I. General Information 
1 Nature of Industry The Company is engaged in trading of precious 

metals and  Jewellery Industry. 
2 Date or expected date of 

Commencement of 
Commercial production 

Commercial operations commenced in the year 
2010 

 In case of new Companies, 
expected date of 
commencement of 
activities as per project 
approved by Financial 
Institutions    appearing    in 
the prospectus 

Not Applicable 

 Financial performance 
based on given indicators 

Particulars 2021-22 (as per Audited 
Financials Report) (In Rs.) 

Paid up Capital 1 0,02,63,450 
Reserves and 
Surplus 

5,89,86,013 

Total Revenue 88,97,31,372 

Total Expenses 87,81,90,804 
Profit before 
Tax 

1,15,40,568 



                                    

 
 

Tax Expenses 
including 
Deferred Tax 

27,62,880 

Profit after Tax 87,77,688 
 Foreign investments or 

collaborators, if any 
Not applicable 

   

II Information about the Appointee: 
 Background detail Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta has been on the 

board of the company since 2010. He is 
specialist in  Jewellery  Industry  and  has been 
instrumental in formulating growth strategy of 
the company 

 Past Remuneration (per 
month) 

Not exceeding Rs.12,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve 
Lakhs Only) per Annum 

 Job profile and his 
suitability 

As a Managing Director, Mr. Akshay Sevantilal 
Mehta , is entrusted with to perform such duties 
and exercise such powers as have been or may  
from time  to time  be  entrusted or conferred 
upon them by the Board. 
 
Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta is of proven caliber  
and skill and having wide ranging experience in 
the industry. 
 
Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta, shall have all powers 
and duties as the Board may determine from 
time to time. 

 Remuneration proposed Not exceeding Rs.12,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve 
Lakhs Only) per Annum 

 Comparative remuneration 
profile with respect to 
industry, size of the 
Company, profile of the 
position and person (in case 
expatriates the relevant  
details  would  be w.r.t.  the  
country  of  his origin) 

The remuneration as proposed for Mr. Akshay 
Sevantilal Mehta is comparable to that drawn by the 
peers in the similar capacity in the industry and is 
commensurate with the size of the Company. 

 Pecuniary relationship 
directly or indirectly with the 
company, or relationship 
with the managerial 
personnel, if any 

Besides the remuneration, the Mr. Akshay 
Sevantilal Mehta does not have any pecuniary 
relationship with the Company. 

 
Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta is husband of 
Varshaben Akshay Mehta, Director of the 
Company and Uncle of Mr. Meet Prafulchandra 
Mehta(Nephew). 

 
Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta is promoter of the 
Company and his shareholding as on March 31, 



                                    

 
 

2022 is 31,06,378 shares in the share capital of 
the Company. 

III Other Information 

 Reasons of loss or 
inadequate profits 

At present  the  Company  is  earning  profits  
which  may  be deemed inadequate for the 
purpose of limits of managerial remuneration. 

 Steps taken or proposed to be 
taken for improvement 

The Company is always looking forward  to  take  
all  such steps and measures including 
expansion, diversification, restructuring which 
are in the best interest of the company. Though, 
the prices of raw materials and products are 
influenced by external factors, the Company is 
making all possible efforts to improve the 
margins. 

 Expected increase 
productivity and profits 
measurable terms 

The Company is very conscious about 
improvement in productivity and undertakes 
constant measures to improve it. However, it is 
extremely difficult in the present scenario to 
predict profit in measurable terms. 

                                Disclosure 
                                The disclosures have been mentioned in the Board of Directors report under the     
                                heading Corporate Governance attached to the annual report. 
 
                               The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 5 for approval of the members.  
                                 
                                Except Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta and his relatives, none of the directors, key        
                                managerial personnel or their relatives are in any way interested or concerned,       
                                financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
 

Item No. 6 
 
        The Board at its meeting held on 12th October, 2021 approved the change in 

designation of Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta (DIN: 07542183)from Non-
Executive Director to Executive Director, Whole Time Director of the 
Company in their meeting held on 12th October, 2021 subject to the 
shareholders’ approval. 

 
        The Board considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the 

Company and it is desirable to avail his services as Director. The Board is of 
the view that Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta (DIN: 07542183), on the 
Company’s Board as Whole Time Director is desirable and would be 
beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends to the shareholders to 
approve the change his designation from Non-Executive Director to 
Executive Director, Whole Time Director of the Company effective from 12th 
October 2021, for approval by the members of the Company. 

 
The key terms and conditions of his re-appointment are as under: 

 
1. Nature of duties: Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta, shall, subject to 

the supervision and control of the Board, be entrusted with 



                                    

 
 

substantial powers of management and also perform such 
duties as may from time to time be entrusted to him. 

2. Remuneration: Not exceeding Rs. 12,00,000.00 
3. Minimum Remuneration: Where, in any financial year, the 

Company has no profit or its profits are inadequate, the 
Company shall pay to Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta in respect 
of such financial year, remuneration by way of salary, allowance, 
perquisites and other benefits subject to further approvals as 
required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
existing or modified or re-enacted from time to time. 

4. The terms and conditions of the said reappointment may be 
altered and varied from time to time by the Board as it may, in 
its discretion, deem fit, subject to such approvals as may be 
required. 

 
Statement containing the information as required under Section-II, Part-II of 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 

 
I. General Information 
1 Nature of Industry The Company is engaged in trading of precious 

metals and   Jewellery Industry 
2 Date or expected date of 

Commencement of 
Commercial production 

Commercial operations commenced in the year 
2010. 

 In case of new Companies, 
expected date of 
commencement of 
activities as per project 
approved by Financial 
Institutions    appearing    in 
the prospectus 

Not Applicable 

 Financial performance 
based on given indicators 

Particulars 2021-22 (as per
 Audited Financials 
Report) (In Rs.) 

Paid up Capital 1 0,02,63,450 
Reserves and 
Surplus 

5,89,86,013 

Total Revenue 88,97,31,372 

Total Expenses 87,81,90,804 
Profit before 
Tax 

1,15,40,568 

Tax Expenses 
including 
Deferred Tax 

27,62,880 

Profit after Tax 87,77,688 
 Foreign investments or 

collaborators, if any 
Not applicable 

   

II Information about the Appointee: 



                                    

 
 

 Background detail Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta has been on the 
board of the company since 2019. He is  
having valuable experience                                                                               of more  than 5  
years in  Jewellery  Industry. 

 Past Remuneration (per 
month) 

Not exceeding Rs.12,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve 
Lakhs Only) per Annum 

 Job profile  and his 
suitability 

As a Managing Director,  Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra 
Mehta, is entrusted with to perform such duties 
and exercise such powers as have been or may  
from time  to time  be  entrusted or conferred 
upon them by the Board. 
 
Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta, shall have all 
powers and duties as the Board may determine 
from time to time. 

 Remuneration proposed Not exceeding Rs.12,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve 
Lakhs Only) per Annum 

 Comparative remuneration 
profile with respect to 
industry, size of the Company, 
profile of the position and 
person (in case expatriates 
the relevant  details  would  be 
w.r.t.  the   country  of  his 
origin) 

The remuneration as proposed for Mr. Meet 
Prafulchnadra Mehta is comparable to that drawn 
by the peers in the similar capacity in the industry 
and is commensurate with the size of the Company. 

 Pecuniary relationship 
directly or indirectly with the 
company, or relationship 
with the managerial 
personnel, if any 

Besides the remuneration, Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra 
Mehta does not have any pecuniary relationship 
with the Company. 
 
Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta is nephew of  Mrs. 
Varshaben Mehta and Mr. Akshay Sevantilal 
Mehta of the Company. 
 
The shareholding of Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta 
as on March 31, 2022 is 75,000.00 shares in the 
share capital of the Company. 

III Other Information 
 Reasons of loss or 

inadequate profits 
At present  the  Company  is  earning  profits  
which  may  be deemed inadequate for the 
purpose of limits of managerial remuneration. 

 Steps taken or proposed to 
be taken for improvement 

The Company is always looking forward to take 
all such steps and measures including 
expansion, diversification, restructuring which 
are in the best interest of the company. Though, 
the prices of raw materials and products are 
influenced by external factors, the Company is 
making all possible efforts to improve the 
margins. 



                                    

 
 

 Expected increase 
productivity and profits 
measurable terms 

The Company is very conscious about 
improvement in productivity and undertakes 
constant measures to improve it. However, it is 
extremely difficult in the present scenario to 
predict profit in measurable terms. 

                                Disclosure 
                                The disclosures have been mentioned in the Board of Directors report under the     
                                heading Corporate Governance attached to the annual report.  
 
                               The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 6 for approval of the members.  
                                 
                                Except Mr. Mr. Meet Prafulchnadra Mehta and his relatives, none of the directors, key        
                                managerial personnel or their relatives are in any way interested or concerned,       

financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
 
Item No 7        

         
        Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN: 09726936) was appointed as an 

additional director under the category of Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f 05.09.2022 as per section 161 of the Companies Act 2013. Due 
notice under section 160 of the Act has been received to propose his as a 
candidate for the office of Director of the Company.  

 
        The Board is also of the opinion that based on the declarations submitted by 

Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN: 09726936), he fulfills the criteria 
relating to his independence as specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015. Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN: 
09726936) does not hold any equity share of the Company. The period of 
office of Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN: 09726936) shall not be liable 
to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation, in terms of Section 
149 (13) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made there under.  

 
        Brief profile of Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN: 09726936) in terms of 

Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations is forming part of this notice. Mr. 
Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN: 09726936) is not disqualified from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
        The Board recommends passing of the resolution as set out in Item No. 7 of 

this Notice.  
 
        None of the Director or key managerial personals of the Company except Mr. 

Prafulkumar Jayantilal Sheth (DIN: 09726936), being appointee, is concerned 
or interested in this resolution. 

 
Item No 8       

         
        Mr. Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 09406867) was appointed as an additional director 

under the category of Independent Director of the Company w.e.f 22.11.2021 
as per section 161 of the Companies Act 2013. Due notice under section 160 
of the Act has been received to propose his as a candidate for the office of 



                                    

 
 

Director of the Company.  
 
        The Board is also of the opinion that based on the declarations submitted by 

Mr. Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 09406867), he fulfills the criteria relating to his 
independence as specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015. Mr. Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 09406867) does not hold any 
equity share of the Company. The period of office of Mr. Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 
09406867) shall not be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by 
rotation, in terms of Section 149 (13) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
relevant rules made there under.  

 
        Brief profile of Mr. Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 09406867) in terms of Regulation 

36(3) of the Listing Regulations is forming part of this notice. Mr. Vaibhav N 
Shah (DIN: 09406867) is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director 
in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
        The Board recommends passing of the resolution as set out in Item No. 8 of 

this Notice.  
 
        None of the Director or key managerial personals of the Company except Mr.    
        Vaibhav N Shah (DIN: 09406867), being appointee, is concerned or      
         interested in this resolution.    

                               
                              Place: Ahmedabad                                      BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 
                              Date: 05thSeptember, 2021                       BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 

                  
                             Registered Office                                                                                                SD/- 
                            209, Shree Balaji Paragon,                                                                    Akshay S. Mehta 
                            B/S Rock Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank,                                        Managing Director 
                            Near Circle - P, C.G. Road,                                                           [DIN: 02986761] 

    Ahmedabad 380009 Gujarat                                                                                                                                                                                           



Director
Akshay Sevantilal Mehta Varshaben 

Sevantilal mehta
Meet Prafulchandra 
Mehta Vaibhan N Shah

Prafulkumar Jayantilal 
Sheth

Appointment/  
Reappointment

Re Appointment as Managing 
Director for further period of 3 
years wef 1st December, 2022

Re Appointment as 
retire by Rotation

Appointment as Whole 
Time Director for period of 
3 years wef 12th October 
2022

Appointment as 
Independent Director for 
the period of 5 years wef 
29th September 2022.

Appointment as 
Independent Directro for 
the period of 5 years wef 
29th September 2022.

Brief Profile

He is the founder and promoter 
of Bhakti Gems and Jewellery 
Ltd. He has been on the Board 
since the incorporation of our 
Company. He brings wealth of 
Jewellery industry experience to 
the company around 22 
years.He is currently focused on 
business development and 
operations of our Company 
including strategic initiatives of 
our business.

She is the founder and 
promoter of Bhakti 
Gems and Jewellery Ltd. 
She has been on the 
Board since the 
incorporation of our 
Company. He brings 
wealth of Jewellery 
industry experience to 
the company around 15 
years.

He has been on the Board 
since 2019. He brings 
wealth of Jewellery 
industry experience to the 
company around 8 years.

He has over 20 year of 
experience in field of 
Jewellery business.

He has over 20 year of 
experience in field of Real 
Estate Business.

Education Metriculation Metriculation BBA B.com Under Graduate

Disclosure of 
relationships 
between Directors

Mrs. Varshaben Mehta- Wife          
Mr. Meet Mehta - Nephew

Mr. Akshay Mehta- 
Husband                                        
Mr. Meet Mehta - 
Nephew

Mr. Akshay Mehta- Uncle          
Mrs. Varshaben Mehta- 
Aunty

Vaibhan N Shah  is not 
related to any of the 
Director of the Company.

Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal 
Sheth  is not related to any 
of the Director of the 
Company.

Directorship and 
Membership in other 
listed company

Director in Samor Reality Ltd NIL NIL NIL NIL

Shareholding, if any, 
in the Company

30.98% 8.21% 0.75% NIL NIL

Details of the directors seeking Appointment/re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (in compliance with 
Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting)



 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall) 

 
 

12th Annual General Meeting on Thursday, September 29, 2022 
 
Full Name of the members attending _____________________________________ 
(In block capitals) 
 
Ledger Folio. No. /Client Id No. ________________ No. of shares held: __________________ 
 
Name of Proxy ___________________________ 
(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member) 
 
I hereby record my presence at the 12th Annual General Meeting of Bhakti Gems and Jewellery 
Limited held at 209, Balaji Paragon, Besides Axis Bank, Swagat Char Rasta, Off. C.G Road, 
Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat at 11:00 a.m. on Thursday, September 29, 2022.  
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Member’s / Proxy’s Signature 
 
Note: 
 
1) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting, since 

further copies will not be available.  
 

2) The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not 
less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.  

 
3) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

 
4) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or 

by Proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority 
shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members. 

 
5) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from 

attending in person and voting at the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

 

Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy Form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
CIN:           L36910GJ2010PLC060064 
Name of the Company: Bhakti Gems and Jewellery Limited 
Registered Office:          209, Shree Balaji Paragon, B/S Rock Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, 
                                             Nr. Circle - P, C. G. Road, Ahmedabad Gujarat 380009 India 
 

 

Name of the member (s) : ______________________________________________________ 
 
Registered Address: _____________________________________________________________ 
                                            

                                          ______________________________________________________________ 
 

Email Id :                      ______________________________________________________________ 
 

Folio No. / Client Id: ______________________________________________________________ 
 

DP ID:                             _______________________________________________                                    
 

 
I/We, being the member (s) of _______________ shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 
 
1. Name: __________________________________________________ 

Address: ________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________ 

Email Id: _______________________________________________ 

Signature ______________________________ or failing him  

2. Name: __________________________________________________ 

Address: ________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________ 

Email Id: _______________________________________________ 

Signature ______________________________  

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 29th 
September, 2022 at 11:00 A.M at the registered office of the Company situated at 
209, Shree Balaji Paragon, B/s Rock Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, Near Circle - P, 
C. G. Road, Ahmedabad- 380009, Gujarat, India and at any adjournment thereof in 
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 

Resolution 
No. 

Resolution Voting 

ORDINARY BUSINESS FOR AGAINST 
1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited 

standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2022 including audited Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year 
ended on that date together with Board of 
Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon. 
 

  

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Varshaben 
Akshaykumar Mehta (DIN: 02988112), who retires by 
rotation and , being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment. 
 

  

3 To appoint the Statutory Auditors of the Company and 
to fix their remuneration and in this regard, to consider 
and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution. 

  

SPECIAL BUSINESS   
4 To alter the Main Objects Clause of the 

Memorandum of Association of the Company 
  

5 Re-Appointment Of Mr. Akshay Sevantilal 
Mehta (DIN:02986761), As A Managing 
Director of The Company w.e.f 01st December, 
2021. 

  

6 Change in designation of Mr. Meet 
Prafulchandra Mehta (DIN:05157688) from 
Non-Executive Director to Executive 
Director as Whole Time Director of the 
Company . 

  

7 Regularisation of as Mr. Prafulkumar Jayantilal 
Sheth (DIN No. 09726936 ) an Independent 
Director of the Company. 

  

8 Regularisation of Mr. Vaibhav Kumar N Shah                
(DIN: 09406867) an Independent Director of the 
Company. 

  

                               Signed this ______ day of ___________2022. 
 
 

Signature of Shareholder____________________________________________ 
                                                                  

Signature of Proxy Holder (s)_______________________________________ 
 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before 
the commencement of the Meeting. 
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                 209, Shree Balaji Paragon, B/s Rock Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, Nr. Circle P,   
                 C.G Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380009 India 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     

                
 



 
 

                                             DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

To. 
The Members, 
Bhakti Gems and Jewellery Limited 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 12th Board Report on the business and operations 
of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/ PERFOMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

 
The Financial performance of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is summarized as 
follows:                                                                                                                                                        (In Rs.) 

Particular Year Ended On 31st 

March, 2022 
Year Ended On 31st 
March,2021 

Income 88,97,31,372 67,94,76,777 
Less: Expenditure (87,79,77,203) (67,59,19,846) 
Profit/(Loss) Before  Depreciation 
and Taxes 

1,17,54,169 35,56,931 

Less: Depreciation 2,13,601 1,40,963 
Net Profit/(Loss) 
Before Tax 

1,15,40,568 34,15,968 

Less: Provision for Tax  - 
Less: Current Tax (27,00,000) (7,00,000) 
Deferred Tax       (62,880) (89,154) 
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 87,77,688 26,26,814 

 
2. OPERATION AND REVIEW 

 
Your Company posted a total income of Rs. 88,97,31,372 in the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2022. Profit after tax is Rs. 87,77,688 in the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022. 
 

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
 
No change of business occurs during the year under review. 
 

4. DIVIDEND 
 
The Board of Directors of your company has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2022, with a view to conserve the profit of the company for investments in 
business operations. 
 

5. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND 
 
Since there was no unpaid / unclaimed dividend, the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) does not apply to the Company. 



 

 

6. RESERVES 
 
The amounts, as on the financial year ended of Reserves are Rs. 5,89,86,013/- 
 

7. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL 
 
During the period under review, the Company has increased Authorised capital of the company from 
10,04,00,000.00 (Rs. Ten Crore Four Lacs Only) to 15,04,00,000.00 (Rs. Fifteen Crore Four Lacs Only) 
w.e.f 12th June 2022.  
 
There is no other changes in capital structure of the Company. The New Capital Structure is as below:-  
 

Particulars Amount 
Authorised Capital (1,50,40,000.00 Share of Rs 10 Each) 15,04,00,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital (1,00,26,345 Share 
of Rs 10 Each) 

10,02,63,450.00 

 
 

8. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 
The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint ventures or associate companies. 
 

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Board consists of five members as on 31 March 2022, two of whom are Promoters and Non- 
Independent Directors and the remaining three are Independent Directors. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial personnel of the company 
are mentioned below as on this Report: 
 

 
Name 

 
Designation 

 
Date of
Appointmen
t 

 
Date of 
Cessation 

Mr. Akshay Sevantila Mehta Managing Director 30/12/2016 - 

Mrs Varshaben Akshay
Mehta 

Non-Executive Non 
Independent Director 

17/03/2017 - 

Mr. Meet Prafulchandra
Mehta 

Whole Time Director 24/07/2019 - 

Mr. Vijaykumar Bhikhabhai
Patel 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

17/03/2017 - 

Mr. Vaibhavkumar Shah Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

22/11/2021 - 

Mr. Milan Chandrakant 

Dave 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

16/02/2017 22/11/2021 

Mr. Sanket Rajeshkumar
Shah 

Chief Financial Officer 24/07/2019 - 

Mrs. Shalu Agrawal 

Singhania 

Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer 

29/06/2019 10/06/2021 

Ms. Maitri Yogeshbhai
Thakkar 

Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

14/07/2021 30/11/2021 

Mr. Shamsher Singh H 
Adarmi 

Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

02/05/2022 - 



 

 

Except above there is no other change in Board and Key Managerial Personnel of the company. 
 
None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified in 
Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and16 (b) of the Listing Regulations from Independent 
Directors confirming that they are not disqualified for continuing as an Independent Director. 
 

 RETIREMENT BY ROTATION 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Mrs. Mrs Varshaben 
Akshay Mehta, Non-Executive Director of the company who is liable to retire by rotation, being 
eligible for reappointment, offers himself for reappointment. Appropriate resolutions for the re- 
appointment are being placed for your approval at the ensuing AGM. 
 

10. MEETINGS OF BOARD 
 
The Board of Directors met Eight (8) times during the Financial Year 2021-22, the details of which are 
given in the Corporate Governance Report that forms part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap 
between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

11. Board Committees & its Meetings 
 
The Board of the Company has total three Committees namely Audit Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The details of composition and 
committee meetings during the year are given in the Corporate Governance Report which is a part of 
this report. 

 
12. BOARD EVALUATION 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 The Board 
evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning and that of the Committees and of individual directors by 
seeking their inputs on various aspects of Board/Committee. The evaluation covered functioning and 
composition of the Board and its committees, understanding of the roles and responsibilities, 
experience, competencies, participation at the Board and Committee meetings, corporate governance 
practices etc. 
 
Evaluation of the Board and its compositions was carried out through a defined process covering the 
areas of the Boards functioning viz. composition of the Board and Committees, understanding of roles 
and responsibilities, experience and competencies, contribution at the meetings etc. 
 

13. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to 
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 
 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
along with explanation relating to material departures; 
 

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit/loss of the company for 
that period; 
 

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 



 

 

 
(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

 
(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
 

(f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions ofall 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

14. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGNEXCHANGE EARNING 
AND OUTGO 
 
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134 (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering 
nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review. 
 
Further during the year under review, the Company has neither earned nor used any foreign 
exchange. 

15. AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT 
 

1. STATUTORY AUDITOR 
 
The Company has appointed M/s. Parth Shah And Associates, Chartered Accountant, Ahmedabad (FRN: 
144251W) as a Statutory Auditor of the Company as per the Provision of Section 139 of Companies Act 2013 
for the Period of Five Years but due to preoccupancy, M/s. Parth Shah And Associates has resigned as 
statutory Auditors of the Company w.e.f 15th April, 2022.  

The Company has appointed M/s. Bhagat & Co, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for  the financial 
year 2022-2023 to fill up the casual vacancy occurred by the resignation of M/s. Parth Shah & Associates., 
till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. 
 
The Company has received a confirmation from the said Auditors that they are not disqualified to act as the 
Auditors and are eligible to hold the office as Auditors of the Company. 
 
The Auditor’s Report for the year ended March 31, 2022 on the financial statements of the Company is a 
part of this Annual Report. The notes on Financial Statements referred in the Annual Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 
 

2. COST AUDITOR 
 

The Company is not require to appoint the Cost Auditor as pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the cost audit is not 
applicable to the Company. 
 

3. SECRETRAIL AUDITOR 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Secretarial Audit for the year 2021-22 was 
undertaken by Ms. Shikha Patel (Shikha Patel & Associates), Practicing Company Secretary.  
 
The Company has engaged the services of Ms. Shikha Patel (Shikha Patel & Associates), Practicing Company 
Secretary (CP No. 16201), Practicing Company Secretary and Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 
providing this certification. The Secretarial Audit Report do not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith and forming part of annual report.



  

 
16. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of 
its operations. The Company has an Internal Audit Department with adequate experience and 
expertise in internal controls, operating system and procedures. In discharging their role and 
responsibilities, the department also engages external audit firms, wherever deemed necessary. 
 

The Internal Audit Department reviews the adequacy of internal control system in the company, its 
compliance with the operating systems and laid down policies and procedures. Based on the report 
of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective actions in their respective areas and 
thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are 
presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
 

17. VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
The Company has established the vigil mechanism through Whistle Blower Policy for all the 
stakeholders of the Company, which also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases as per the Policy. The details of the Whistle Blower 
Policy is available on the website of the Company i.e. www.bhaktijewellery.com. 
 

18. RISK    MANAGEMENT  

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed to managing the 
risks in proactive and efficient manner. The Company periodically assesses risk in the internal and 
external environment, along with the cost of treating risks and incorporates risk treatment plans 
in its strategy, business and operational plans. 
 
The Company, through its risk management process, strives to contain impact and likelihood of the 
risk within the risk appetite as agreed from time to time with the Board of Directors. 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report of the Annual Report identifies key risks, which can 
affect the performance of the Company. 
 
The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy for a systematic approach to control risks. 
The Risk Management Policy of the Company developed in line with the business strategy lays 
down procedures for risk identification, evaluation, monitoring, review and reporting. 
 

19. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY 
 
During the year under the review there are No other material changes and commitments affecting 
the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which this 
Financial Statements relate and the date of this report. 
 

20. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 
 

There is no significant and material order was passed by regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
 
 

21. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH 
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
 
The company has adequate internal control systems in place. With a view to monitor the 



  

Company’s performance as well as to make sure that internal checks and controls are operating 
properly, the company has appointed external firms of Chartered Accountant as Internal auditor. The 
audit committee ensures that the internal control systems are adequate and working effectively. 
 

22. DEPOSITS 
 

Your Company has neither invited nor accepted any fixed deposit from the public during 
the year. 
 

23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 
 
The Company has not granted any loans, Investment made, guarantees given and securities 
provided along with the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be 
utilized by the recipient are provided in the financial statement. 
 

24. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
During the year under review, contracts or arrangements entered into with the Related Parties as 
defined under Section 188 of the Act were in ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis. 
 
However, there are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company                                  with 
Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other Designated Persons which may have potential 
conflict with interest of the Company at large. 
 

25. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
 
The disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 shall 
not be applicable to the Company. 
 

26. LISTING 
 
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange. Further, the Company is 
regular in compliances of various clauses and regulations of the Listing Agreement and/or LODR. 
 

27. PARTICULARS REGARDING EMPLOYEES: 
 
During the year under report, none of the employees was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the 
limit prescribed under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014. 
 

28. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. Your Company 
continuously invests in attraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A 
number of programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company 
thrust is on the promotion of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement. 
 

29. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Company is committed to maintain the standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the 
Corporate Governance requirement set out by SEBI. In terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A separate section on corporate governance 
along with a certificate from the Auditor confirming compliance is annexed and forms part of the Annual 
Report. 



  

 
30. INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS 

 
Based on the requirements under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended from time to time, the code of conduct for prohibition of insider trading, as approved and 
adopted by the Directors and designated Employees of the Company. The Code requires pre- clearance 
for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the 
Directors and designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 
information during the period of Trading Window Closure. The Board is responsible for 
implementation of the Code. All Board of Directors and designated employees have confirmed 
compliance with the Code. 
 

31. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report as Required under Regulation 34 and Schedule V of 
the Listing Regulations, forms an integral part of this Report and provide Company’s current 
working and future outlook. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is annexed and 
forms part of the Annual Report. 

 
32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 
Your Directors place on record their gratitude for the continuing support of Shareholders, Bankers, 
various government authorities, members and business associates for their continued support and 
valuable co-operation. 
 
 

Place: Ahmedabad BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 

Date: 05th September, 2022 BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 
 
Registered Office                           Sd/ 
209, Shree Balaji Paragon, Akshay Sevantilal Mehta 
B/S Rock Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, Managing Director 
Near Circle - P, C.G. Road,                                                               [DIN: 02986761]  
Ahmedabad 380009 Gujarat



 

Shikha Patel & aSSociateS            
Company Secretaries              
Shikha Patel                                                                  
M: +91 90161 21381                                                        
E: cs.spatelasso@gmail.com 
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Form No. MR-3  

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

************************************************************************************* 
 
To, 
The Members, 
BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 
CIN: L36910GJ2010PLC060064 
209, SHREE BALAJI PARAGON, B/S ROCK REGENCY HOTEL, OPP. AXIS BANK, NR. CIRCLE - P, 
C.G.ROAD, 
AHMEDABAD Ahmedabad GJ 380009. 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 
(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 
me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial 
Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined (physical as well as online verification and examination of records was conducted 
as facilitated by the Company due to Covid 19 pandemic for the purpose of issuing this report) the 
books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the Rules made thereunder; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 
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the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; - Not Applicable during the Reporting Period 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”): 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; - Not Applicable during the Reporting Period 
(d) The Securities and   Exchange   Board   of   India (Share   Based   Employee   

Benefits) Regulations, 2014; - Not Applicable during the Reporting Period 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; - Not Applicable during the Reporting Period 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; - Not Applicable during the Reporting Period 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009; - Not Applicable during the Reporting Period and 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
1998. - Not Applicable during the Reporting Period 

 
(vi) During the period under report, no specific law was applicable to the Company. 
 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued 
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
I further report that compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and 
indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review 
by Tax Auditor/Other designated professionals. 
 
I further report that during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
I further report that: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 
 
Adequate notices were given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and 
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detailed notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. There were no dissenting views on any matter. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all the applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, standards etc. 
 
I further report that during the audit period, the Company has not conducted any actions/ events 
which could have a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR, SHIKHA PATEL & ASSOCIATES 
(PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY) 

 
 

  
    

PLACE: AHMEDABAD                                                                                                                                        CS SHIKHA PATEL 
DATE:07/09/2022                                                                                                                                                  ACS NO.: 43955 

                                                                                                                                                          C P NO.: 16201 
                                                                                                                           UDIN: A043955D000934328   
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To, 
The Members, 
BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 
CIN: L36910GJ2010PLC060064 
209, SHREE BALAJI PARAGON, B/S ROCK REGENCY HOTEL, OPP. AXIS BANK, NR. CIRCLE - P, C.G. 
ROAD, AHMEDABAD – 380009, GUJARAT 
 
My report of even date provided in Form MR-3 is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 
 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes 
and practices I follow, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 
 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 
 
4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of Management. My examination was limited to the verification of 
procedure on test basis, for the purpose of issuing Secretarial Audit Report. 
 
6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 

FOR, SHIKHA PATEL & ASSOCIATES 
(PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY) 

 
 

  
    

PLACE: AHMEDABAD                                                                                                                                        CS SHIKHA PATEL 
DATE:07/09/2022                                                                                                                                                  ACS NO.: 43955 

                                                                                                                                                          C P NO.: 16201 
                                                                                                                           UDIN: A043955D000934328   
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SL. 
No.

Details

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

f)
g)
h)

Sr. No Particulers

1

Name (s) of the related party 
& nature of Relationship

Mr Meet Mehta, Director 
of the Company

3

Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/tran
saction

Remuneration of  
7,20,000/-

Rent Paid
 Of Rs.
7,80,000

Unsecured Loan 
Taken of R Rs. 
2,71,85,236/-

Remuneration 
of 4,50,000/- Unsecured Loan Taken of R 

Rs. 56,08,607/-
Unsecured Loan Taken of 
R Rs. 70,86,021/-

4

Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/tran
saction

NA NA NA NA NA NA

6

Salient terms of the contracts 
or arrangements or 
transaction including the 
value, if any

NA NA NA NA NA NA

8 Date of approval by the Board
20.01.2022 14.04.2021

14.04.2021 20.01.2022 14.04.2021 14.04.2021
9 Amount paid as advances, if anyNA NA NA NA NA NA

For and on behalf of Board

DATE: 05/09/2021 SD/- SD/-
PLACE: Ahmedabad Akshay Mehta Meet mehta

Managing Director Whole Time Director

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta, Director of the Company
Mrs. Varsha Akshay Mehta, Director of the 

Company

Details

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
 FORM NO. AOC -2

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the  company  with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

There         were         
no transactions or
arrangement which 
were not at Arm’s 
Length Basis.

2.      Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’

Date of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any
Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

1.      Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Particulars

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship



 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

Business Overview 
 

We are engaged in the wholesale business of Gold Jewellery. Our registered office and business of 
operations is based in Ahmedabad. We essentially sell gold based chains, bracelets and necklaces. We 
outsource the manufacturing of our jewellery through job workers based in Ahmedabad and Mumbai. 
The major raw material used for making our products is gold and silver. We procure gold and silver 
majorly through the bullion market and partially from the local markets in Ahmedabad. Gold bars and 
other necessary material are provided to the job workers who are based either in Ahmedabad and 
Mumbai. However, no formal agreement has been executed with either of these job workers. The 
finished jewellery is sold by our marketing and sales team directly to other jewellery stores. Our 
jewellery is widely sold throughout Gujarat only through B2B marketing and / or Direct / Outbound 
marketing strategy. 

 
We are a customer-centric Company, our prime focus is to attain the utmost client satisfaction by 
offering them quality assured products. Moreover, our ethical trade practices, transparent business 
dealings and timely delivery of products help us in maintaining cordial relations with our customers. 
Our Company strives at all times to provide products that offer our customers the designs with 
superior finish and quality. 

 
Our Competitive Strengths 

 
 Quality Products 
 Use of efficient internal processes to leverage our sales 
 Wide Range of our Products 
 Established Brand Name 
 Experience of our Promoters 
 Experienced Management Team & efficient Work Force 
 Strong and Long term Relationship with our Clients 

 
Our Business Strategies 

 
 Continue to maintain Strong Relation with existing Customers 
 Enhancing Operating Effectiveness and Efficiency 
 Active and regular Participation in trade fairs and Exhibitions 

 
Human Resources and Industrial Relations 

 
Human Resources play a critical role in driving the Company’s strategies and growth. The Company 
endeavours to become the best place to work for its employees and to provide them with a nurturing 
environment that is essential for their growth. The Company has implemented comprehensive and 
well-structured HR Policies to ensure employee growth both at personal and professional levels. The 
Company’s talent pool comprises a diverse set of experienced and skilled people who play key roles 
in enhancing business efficiency, devising strategies, setting up systems and evolving business as per 
industry requirements. The Company provides a safe, conducive and productive work environment 
to its people. Overall, the Company provides a nurturing work environment to a diverse set of 
workforce. The total number of employees as on 31st March, 2021 was 15 (Fifteen). 

 
Risk & Concerns 

 
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key 
business objectives. Key business risks and mitigation strategy are highlighted below: 



1) Business Risk: To mitigate the risk of high dependence on any one business for revenues, the 
Company has adopted a strategy of launching new products / services. 

 
2) Legal & Statutory Risk: The Company Secretary, Compliance and Legal Functions advices the 

Company on issues relating to compliance with law and to pre-empts violations of the same. The 
Company Secretary submits a quarterly report to the Board on the Company’s initiatives to comply 
with the laws of various jurisdictions. The Company also seeks independent legal advice wherever 
necessary. 

 
3) Human Resource Attrition Risk: The Company’s key assets are its employees and in a highly 

competitive market, it is a challenge to address attrition. The Company continues to accord top 
priority to manage employee attrition by talent retention efforts and offering a competitive salary and 
growth path for talented individuals. 

 
4) Others: The Company is exposed to risks and fluctuations of foreign exchange rates, raw material 

prices and overseas investments exposures. 
 

Internal Control System 
 

The Company maintains a proper and adequate system of internal controls, which provides for 
automatic checks and balances. The Company’s resilience and focus is driven to a large extent by its 
strong internal control systems for financial reporting. The Company follows strict procedures to 
ensure high accuracy in recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, 
meeting statutory compliances. The Company’s internal team and Audit Committee closely oversee 
business operations. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls to ensure an orderly and efficient conduct of its business. The 
Committees also ensure adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. Any deviations are promptly 
reported to the management. Various risk mitigation measures are then devised to bring risk 
exposure levels in line with risk appetite. Timely and adequate measures are undertaken to ensure 
undisrupted functioning of the business. 

 
Place: Ahmedabad BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 

Date: 05thSeptember, 2022 BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 

Registered Office               Sd/ 
209, Shree Balaji Paragon, Akshay Sevantilal Mehta 
B/S Rock Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, Managing Director 
Near Circle - P, C.G. Road,  [DIN: 02986761] 
Ahmedabad 380009 Gujarat 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

A. COMPANY’S  PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :- 
 

Corporate Governance essentially is the system by which companies are directed and controlled by the 
management in the best interest of the shareholders and others. Corporate Governance ensures fairness, 
transparency and integrity of the management. 
 
The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance aims at ethical corporate behavior and always 
strives to achieve optimum performance at all levels by adhering to good Corporate Governance 
practices. The Company's beliefs on Corporate Governance are intended at supporting the management 
of the Company for competent conduct of its business and ensuring long term value for shareholders 
employees, customers and statutory authorities. 

 
 

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- 
 

The Board is entrusted with an ultimate responsibility of the Management, directions and performance 
of the Company. As its primary role is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides leadership, strategic 
guidance, objective and independent view to the Company’s management while discharging its 
responsibilities, thus ensuring that the management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures. 

 
 

(i) Composition: 
The Board of Company has a mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors comprising 2  
Independent Directors in accordance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 
Act’) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 
As on 31ST March, 2022, the Board consists of Five Directors comprising Two Executive and Three 
Non Executive. The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of knowledge and experience 
and enables the Board to perform its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. 
 
The Composition of the Board as on March 31, 2022 are as under :-  

Name of the Director Designation Category 
Akshay Sevantilal Mehta Managing 

Director 
Promoter (Executive) 

Meet Prafulchandra Mehta Whole Time 
Director 

Executive Director 

Varshaben Akshaykumar 
Mehta 

Director Promoter (Non Executive) 

Vijaykumar Bhikhabhai Patel Director Independent (Non 
Executive) 

Vaibhavkumar Shah Director Independent (Non 
Executive) 

 
 

(ii) Board Functions 
Meetings: The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/business policy 
and strategy apart from other Board businesses. The Company holds at least four Board Meetings in a 
year, one in each quarter to review the financial results and other items of the agenda. Apart from the 
four scheduled Board meetings, additional Board meetings are also convened to address the specific 
requirements of the Company. 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting, Last Annual General Meeting and Number of other 
Directorship / Chairmanship of Committee of each Director's of various Companies are as follows:-  
 

Name of 
Director 

Attendance 
Particular 

No. of other Directorships and Committee 
Membership/Chairmanship 

 Board 
Meeting 

Last 
AGM 

Other 
Directorship 
(including Pvt 
Ltd Company) 

Other 
Committee 
Membership 

Other 
Committee 
Chairmanship 

Akshay 
Sevantilal 
Mehta 

9 Yes 2 2 0 

Meet 
Prafulchandr
a Mehta 

9 Yes 0 0 0 

Varshaben 
Akshaykuma
r Mehta 

9 Yes 0 1 0 

Vijaykumar 
Bhikhabhai 
Patel 

9 Yes 0 3 3 

Vaibhav 
kumar Shah* 

2 No 0 3 0 

Milan 
Chandrakant 
Dave** 

6 Yes 0 0 3 

 
 * Vaibhav kumar Shah , Independent director,  appointed as an Independent Director                         of the Company 
w.e.f 22nd November 2022. 
**Milan Chandrakant Dave , Independent director,  ceased to act as an Independent Director                            of the 
Company w.e.f 22nd November 2022. 
Note:  
*Directorship does not include Section 8 Companies and Foreign Companies.  
None of the Directors on the Board hold Directorships in more than Ten (10) Public Companies. Further 
none of them is a member of more than Ten (10) Committees or Chairman of more than Five (5) 
Committees across all the Public Companies in which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding 
as on March 31, 2022 have been made by the Directors.  
 
Given below is the chart names of the Listed Companies wherein the Directors of the Company are 
Directors:- 
 

Sr No Name of Director List of Directorship held in other 
listed entities 

1. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta Samor Reality Limited 
 
Relationship between Directors inter-se Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se: 

Sr No Director Relationship with other 
Directors 

1. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta Varshaben Mehta–Wife 
Meet Mehta- Nephew 

2. Varshaben Akshaykumar Mehta Akshay Mehta – Husband 
Meet Mehta - Nephew 

3. Meet Prafulchandra Mehta Akshay Mehta- Uncle, Meet 
Mehta- Aunty 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
No inter-se relationship with any of the Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company 
 
Directors Shareholding as on March, 31, 2022 
 

Sr No Executive Director No of Equity Shares held 
1 Akshay Sevantilal Mehta 3106378 
2 Meet Prafulchandra Mehta    75000 

 
(iii) Number of Board Meetings: 

 
During the year under review, 9 (Nine) Board Meetings were held by the Company on the below mentioned 
dates as under: 

 
1. 14th April, 2021 2. 15th June, 2021 
3. 30th June 2021 4. 14th July, 2021 
5. 7th September, 2021 6. 12th October, 2021 
7. 13th November, 2021 8. 22nd November, 2021 
9. 20th January, 2022   

 
(iv) Independent Directors: 

 
 Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors:: 

 

During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and Members of the Management, was held on 19th March 2022, as required Under 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 (Code for Independent Directors) read with Regulation 25(3) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Independent Directors 
inter-alia reviewed the performance of the Non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 

 
 Resignation by Independent Directors: 

 

During the year, Milan Chandrakant Dave , Independent director,  resigned from the post of an Independent 
Director                   of the Company w.e.f 22nd November 2022. 

 

Performance Evaluation  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Board is required to monitor and review the Board evaluation 
framework. In line with the Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Board has carried out the annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of its 
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The evaluation process also 
considers the attendance of Board Members, core competencies, personal characteristics, accomplishment of 
specific responsibilities. The Board evaluation is conducted through questionnaire having qualitative 
parameters and feedback based. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 
C. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:- 

 
The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company. The Board has 
constituted sub-committees to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions. Each Committee of the 
Board is guided by its Charter, which defines the scope, powers and composition of the Committee. All 
decisions and recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for information or approval. 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

The Committees also make specific recommendations to the Board on various matters from time-to time. All 
observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board for information 
or for approval.  
 
The Company has Three Committees, namely:  
(I) Audit Committee  
(II) Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
(III) Stakeholder Relationship Committee  

 
 

The Board has currently established the following 3 (Three) Committees: 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 
I. Audit Committee: 

 
(i) The Audit Committee acts as a link between the Management, Statutory Auditors and the Board of 

Directors of the Company and oversees the financial reporting process. 
 

(ii) The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
(iii) The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as under:  
 

 Reviewing of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information  
 To ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.  
 Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of external Auditor.  
 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit 
process.  
 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties  
 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.  
 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.  
 Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.  
• Reviewing with management the Annual financial statements and half yearly and Quarterly 
financial results before submission to the Board.  
 Reviewing periodically the adequacy of the internal control system.  
 Discussions with Internal Auditor on any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

 
(iv) The Audit Committee invites such Executives as it considers appropriate (particularly the head of 

the finance function), representatives of the Statutory Auditors. The Company Secretary acts as the 
Secretary of the Audit Committee and remains present in its Meetings. 

 
(v) During the financial year 2021-22, the Audit Committee met 5 (Four) times on, 14th April, 2021,  

30th June 2021, 14th July 2021, 13th November 2021, 20th January 2022, and the gap between two 
meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The necessary quorum was present for all 
the meetings. 

 

(i) The details of composition of the Committee and their attendance at the meetings are given 
below: 

 
Name Designation Category No. of Meetings attended 

Vijaykumar Bhikhabhai Patel Chairman NEID 5 



 
 

 
 

 

 

Milan Chandrakant Dave* Chairman NEID 4 
Vaibhavkumar Shah Member NEID 1 
Akshay Sevantilal Mehta Member ED 5 

NEID: Non-Executive Independent Director, EID : Executive Independent Director 
 

*Ceased w.e.f. 22nd November, 2021. The Board has appointed Mr. Vijaykumar Bhikhabhai Patel (DIN: 
07663781),Independent Director, as the Chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 23rd November, 2021. 

 
II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 
(i) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the 

provisions of Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
(ii) The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as under:  

 
 Formulation of the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of Director;  
 Devising a policy on Board diversity;  
 Formulation of Remuneration policy;  
 Review the structure, size and composition of the Board;  
 Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors;  
 Identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management;  
 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board 

(iii) During the Financial year 2021-22, 2 (Two) meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee were held on 14th July, 2021 and 22nd November, 2021. 

 
 

(iv) The composition of the Committee and their attendance at the meetings are given below: 
 

Name Designation Category No. of Meetings attended 
Vijaykumar Bhikhabhai Patel* Chairman NEID 2 
Milan Chandrakant Dave* Chairman NEID 2 
Vaibhavkumar Shah Member NEID 0 
Meet Prafulchandra Mehta** Member ED 2 
Varshaben Akshaykumar 
Mehta** 

Member NENID 0 

NEID: Non-Executive Independent Director, ED : Executive Director, NEID- Non-Executive Non Independent 
Director 

*Ceased w.e.f. 22nd November, 2021. The Board has appointed Mr. Vijaykumar Bhikhabhai Patel 
(DIN: 07663781),Independent Director, as the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee w.e.f. 23rd November, 2021. 

**Change in designation of Meet Prafulchandra Mehta from Mr. NEID to WTD (ED), and  of  Mrs. 
Varshaben Akshaykumar Mehta from WTD (ED) to NEID w.e.f. 30th November, 2021. 

 
 

(v) Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 
 

The Company's pays remuneration to its Managing Director and Executive Director(s) by way of salary. 
Further the said remuneration to the aforesaid director is paid within the overall limits approved by the 
members of the Company subject to the overall ceiling limits as stipulated in Sections 197, 198 and as 
per the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
The appointment and remuneration of all the Executive Directors including Managing Director of the 
Company is governed by the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company. The remuneration 
package of Executive Director(s) comprises of salary as approved by the shareholders at the General 
Meetings.  
 
The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements. 
It is aimed at attracting and retaining high caliber talent. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is 
displayed on the Company’s website viz. www.bhaktijewellery.com. 

 
Executive Directors Remuneration:  
 
The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the FY 2021-22 is as below: 
 

Name  Position Remuneration 
Mr. Akshay S Mehta Managing Director 7,20,000/- 
Mr. Varshaben A mehta Whole Timer Director  4,50,000/- 

**Change in designation of Mrs. Varshaben Akshaykumar Mehta from WTD (ED) to NEID w.e.f. 30th 
November, 2021. 
 
 

III.  Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 
 

(a) The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of 
Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
(b) The broad terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as under: 

 
 Monitor and review any investor complaints received by the Company or through SEBI, 

SCORES and ensure its timely and speedy resolution, in consultation with the Company 
Secretary, Compliance officer and Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

 Monitor implementation and compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for 
Prohibition of Insider Trading. 

 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
 Perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its 

duties 
 

(c) During the Financial Year 2021-22, 1(One) meetings of the Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee were held on 20th January, 2022. 

 
 
                 The composition of the Committee and their attendance at the meetings are given below: 

 
Name Designation Category No. of Meeting attended 

Vijaykumar Bhikhabhai 
Patel* 

Chairman NEID 1 

Milan Chandrakant Dave* Chairman NEID 0 
Vaibhavkumar Shah Member NEID 1 
Akshay Sevantilal Mehta Member ED 1 
NEID: Non-Executive Independent Director, ED- Executive Director 



 
 

 
 

 

 

*Ceased w.e.f. 22nd November, 2021. The Board has appointed Mr. Vijaykumar Bhikhabhai Patel (DIN: 
07663781),Independent Director, as the Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee w.e.f. 23rd 
November, 2021. 

 
During the year, the Company has not received any complaints from the Shareholders of the Company. 
There were no outstanding complaints as on 31/03/2022. 

 
D. CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
 The Board of Directors have laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior 
management of the Company. All Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the code of conduct as approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. (Annexure I) 
 

E. GENERAL BODY MEETING: - 

(i) Date, Time and Venue where last three Annual General Meetings were held: 
 

Year 
 

Date Day 
 

Time Venue 

2020-21 30th Sep Thursday 11:00 
AM 

209, Shree Balaji Paragon, B/S Rock 
Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, Near 
Circle ‐ P, C. G. Road, Ahmedabad‐ 
380009, Gujarat, India 

2019-20 25th Nov Wednesday 03:00 
PM 

209, Shree Balaji Paragon, B/S Rock 
Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, Near 
Circle ‐ P, C. G. Road, Ahmedabad‐ 
380009, Gujarat, India 

2018-19 21st Sep Saturday 11:00 
AM 

209, Shree Balaji Paragon, B/S Rock 
Regency Hotel, Opp. Axis Bank, Near 
Circle ‐ P, C. G. Road, Ahmedabad‐ 
380009, Gujarat, India 

(ii) Special Resolution passed at the last three Annual General Meetings (AGM): 

 At the AGM held on September 30, 2021: 

To increase the limits of remuneration of Mr. Akshay Sevantilal Mehta, Managing Director of 
the Company 

To increase the limits of remuneration of Ms. Varshaben Akshaykumar Mehta, Whole Time 
Director of the Company 

 At the AGM held on November 25, 2020: NIL 

 At the AGM held on September 21, 2019: NIL 

(iii) Extra-ordinary General Meeting: 
 

During the year, No Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held by the Company. 
 

(iv) Postal Ballot 
 
 Whether any Special Resolution passed last year through Postal Ballot : No 
 Whether any Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot : No 

 
F. OTHER DISCLOSURES: - 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

1. Related Party Transactions :- All transactions entered into which related parties as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and  Regulation  23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations during the financial year 
were in ordinary course of  business. These have been approved by the Audit Committee. The Board 
has approved a policy for Related Party Transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s 
website i.e. http://www.bhaktijewellery.com 

2. The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchange(s), Securities and 
Exchange Board  of India or other authorities on any matter related to Capital Market during the last 
3 (three) years.There are no  non-compliance by the Company or penalties imposed on the Company 
by the Stock exchanges or the SEBI on  any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last three 
years to the best of our knowledge.  

3. The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy and has established vigil mechanism as defined 
Under Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations for Directors and Employees to report unethical 
behavior. No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy 
has been also uploaded on the Company’s website i.e. www.bhaktijewellery.com. 

4. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit :- Shikha Patel & Associates (CoP No 16201) carried out 
Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted Equity Share Capital with the National Securities 
Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) and 
the total issued and listed Equity Share Capital. The Audit Report confirms that the total issued/ 
paid-up capital is in agreement with the Total Number of Shares in physical form and the total 
number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL. 

5. The Company had in place a 'Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading', in accordance with 
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The said Code is posted on Company's 
website www.bhaktijewellery.com. 
 
 
 

G. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:  
 
Website : The Companies website www.bhaktijewellery.com contains a separate dedicated section 
“Investor Relations” where shareholders information is available. Full Annual Report is also available 
on the website in a user friendly and downloadable form. 
 
Financial Results:.These are submitted to the Stock Exchanges in accordance with the Listing 
Agreement and published in Indian Express (English), Financial Express (Gujarati Edition). 
 
Annual Report: Annual Report containing inter- alia Audited Annual Accounts, Directors' Report, 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance Report, Auditors' Report, 
Secretarial Audit Report and other important information is circulated to Members and other entitled 
thereto. 
 
BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’) BSE’s Listing Centre is a web-
based application designed for corporate. All compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate 
governance report, media releases, among others are filed electronically on the Listing Centre. 
 
Designated Exclusive email-id for investor services: The Company has designated the following email-
id exclusively for investor servicing. compliancebhakti@gmail.com 
 
SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) :- The investor complaints are processed in a centralised 
web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: Centralised database of 
all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online 
viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. 

 
H. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION: - 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

1. AGM : Date, Time and 
Venue 

The 12th AGM will be held on Thursday, the 29th September, 
2022 at 11.00 a.m. at the Registered office of the Company 
situated at 209, Shree Balaji Paragon, B/s Rock Regency Hotel, 
Opp. Axis Bank, Near Circle - P, C. G. Road, Ahmedabad- 
380009, Gujarat 

2. Financial Year 
(Proposed) 

Financial Year 2021-22 consists of 12 (Twelve) months 
starting from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022. 

3. Dividend Payment Date The Company has not declared any Dividend in the 
Financial Year 2021-22. 

4. Listing on Stock 
Exchange 

BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001, Maharashtra 

5. Payment of Annual Listing 
Fees 

The Listing fees for Financial Year 2021-22 are paid to the Stock 
Exchange. The custodial fees are paid to the National Securities 
Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and the Central Depository Securities 
Ltd. (CDSL) for the Financial Year 2021-22. 

6. Stock Code BSE: 5404545 
7. Security ISIN No. INE986W01016 
8. Cut-off Date 22th September, 2022 
9. Date of Book Closure 23st September, 2022 to 29th September, 2022 
10. Investor Services – 

Queries / Complaints 
during the period 
Ended 

During the period from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022, 
no queries/complaints/requests were received by the 
Company from the Shareholders and Investors. 

11. Company’s
 Registra
tion Number 

CIN of the Company is L36910GJ2010PLC060064. 

12. Registered Office 209, Shree Balaji Paragon, Near Circle - P, C.G Road, B/S 
Rock Regency Hotel, Opposite Axis Bank, Ahmedabad, 
Gujarat, 380009 

13. Company’s Website   www.bhaktijewellery.com 
14. E-mail Address compliancebhakti@gmail.com 

 
15. Market Share Price data (at BSE):- 

 
Equity Shares of the Company are listed at BSE Limited on Tuesday,  May 30, 2017 under BSE platform. 
The                            Performance of our stock in the financial year 2021-22 is tabulated below: 

 
Month BSE 

Month’s High Price 
(Rs.) 

Month’s Low Price 
(Rs.) 

April-2021 39.20 27.65 
May-2021 27.10 18.90 
June-2021 25.40 17.80 
July-2021 24.50 16.80 
August-2021 19.15 14.80 
September-2021 16.90 14.80 
October-2021 16.75 11.40 
November-2021 14.40 10.60 
December-2021 19.79 11.40 
January-2022 44.60 15.30 
February-2022 38.55 16.30 
March-2022 25.05 17.10 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

16. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31-03-2022:- 
Category No. of 

Shareholders 
% of total 

Shareholders 
No. of 

Shares held 
% of 

Shareholding 
Up to 5,000 13146 86.61 1470899 14.67 
5,001 - 10,000 1100 7.25 888657 8.86 
10,001 - 20,000 505 3.33 766569 7.65 
20001 – 30000 184 1.21 467793 4.67 
30001 – 40000 57 0.38 205283 2.05 
40001 – 50000 52 0.34 244711 2.44 
50000-100000 86 0.57 619605 6.18 
100001& 
Above 

49 0.31 5362828 53.48 

Total 15179 100.00 10026345 100.00 
 

 No. of 
Shareholders 

% of 
Shareholders 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Shareholding 

Physical Mode 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Electronic 

Mode 
15179 100 10026345 100 

Total 15179 100 10026345 100 
 

17. Shareholding Pattern as on 31-03-2022:- 
 

Category 
Code 

Category No. of 
Shareholders 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Share capital 

(A) Shareholding Promoter & 
Promoter Group 

   

(1) Indian    

 - Individuals / Hindu Undivided 
Family 

2 39,29,531 39.19 

 - Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 
(2) Foreign 0 0 0.00 
 Sub-Total (A) 2 39,29,531 39.19 
(B) Public Shareholding    

(1) Institutions 0 0 0.00 
(2) Non-Institutions    

 - Individuals 15030 53,82,446 53.69 
 - Hindu Undivided Family 68 72222 0.72 
 - N. R. I. 34 85982 0.86 
 - Clearing Members 26 29509 0.29 
 -Other Bodies Corporate 17 484555 4.83 
 -Firm 2 42100 0.42 
 Sub-Total (B)    
(C) Shares held by Custodians and 

 against which Depository Receipts 
has been issued 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0.00 

 Sub-Total (C ) 0 0 0.00 
 GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 15,179 1,00,26,345 100.00 

 
18. Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity:-x 

 
As on 31st March, 2022, Equity Shares comprising 100% of the Company’s Equity Share Capital 
have been dematerialised. 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Percentage of Share Held in:-  
Electronic Form with NSDL :- 62.74 % 
Electronic Form with CDSL :- 37.26 % 
 

19. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments:- 
 

The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs as on 31st March, 2022. No Warrants/Convertible 
Instruments were outstanding for conversion as on 31st March, 2022. 

 
20. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent :- 

 
Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd 
Registered Office Address 

  A/506 Dattani Plaza 
  A K Road, Safed Pool, 
  Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400072. 
Maharashtra 
Phone No.: 022-49721245,022-28511022  
Email:subhashdhingreja@skylinerta.com 
Website: www.skylinerta.com 

Corporate Office Address 
  A/506 Dattani Plaza 
  A K Road, Safed Pool, 
  Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400072. 
Maharashtra 
Phone No.: 022-49721245,022-28511022  

  Email:subhashdhingreja@skylinerta.com                
Website: www.skylinerta.com 

Share Transfer and Dematerialisation System The complete work related to share transfer and 
dematerialisation is carried out by the above 
stated RTA. 

 

21. Address for Correspondence for Shareholders:- 
 

Shareholder correspondence should be addressed to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, 
Skyline Financial Services Pvt;Ltd at A/506 Dattani Plaza, A K Road, Safed Pool, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai - 400072. Maharashtra, Phone No.: 022-49721245, 022-28511022 , 
Email:subhashdhingreja@skylinerta.com. 

 
Shareholders may also write to or contact the Company Secretary at the Registered Office at the 
following address for any assistance: 

 
Mr. Shamsher Singh Adarmi 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Bhakti Gems & Jewellery Limited, 
209, Shree Balaji Paragon, Near Circle - P, C.G Road,  
B/S Rock Regency Hotel, Opposite Axis Bank,  
Ahmedabad, Gujarat, 380009  
Phone No.: 079-26421701 
.Email: compliancebhakti@gmail.com 

 

22. Credit Ratting:- Company is not required to obtain Credit Rating. 
 

23. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:- 
 

In keeping with the requirement of the SEBI as specified in regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories & 
Participants) Regulations, 2018, Audit by Ms. Shikha Patel (COP: 16201), Practicing Company 
Secretary, Ahmedabad, have been carried out to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and 
CDSL and the total issued and listed capital. The said audit confirms that the total issued/paid up capital 



 
 

 
 

 

 

tallies with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares 
held with NSDL and CDSL. 

 
24. Disclosures in relation to the sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013:- 
 

During the year, the Company had not received any complaints and no complaints were pending as on 
31st March, 2022. 

 
 

25. Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/Unclaimed Suspense Account: 
      Not Applicable 

 
 

26. MD and CFO certification 
      
    As required by Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II Part B of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Managing       
    Chief Financial Officer have given appropriate certifications to the Board of Directors.(Annexure II). 

 
27. Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary:-  
        

         As required by Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V, Part E of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the               
        certificate given by Ms. Shikha Patel (COP: 16201), PracticingCompany Secretaries regarding    
        compliance of conditions of corporate governance, is annexed to theBoard’s  Report. (Annexure III) 
 
         As required by Clause 10 (i) of Part C under Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the      
         Company has received a certificate from Ms. Shikha Patel (COP: 16201), Practicing Company    
         Secretaries certifying that none of our Directors have been debarred or disqualified from being   
         appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by SEBI or MCA or such other statutory authority.     
        (Annexure IV) 

       
 

  



 
 

 
 

 

 

Annexure I 

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY THE BOARD MEMBERS 

     AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PRESONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE 

OF CONDUCT 

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Senior Management Employees and 
the Board of Directors including the Executive Directors, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. 

I further confirm that the Company has obtained from all the Members of the Board and the Senior Management 
Personnel, affirmation that they have complied with the code of conduct of the Company. 
 

 
Place: Ahmedabad Akshay Sevantilal Mehta 
Date: 05/09/2022                                                              MANAGING DIRECTOR 
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Annexure II 

CERTIFICATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER (CFO) 

We, Akshay Sevantilal Mehta, Managing Director & Sanketbhai Rajeshkumar Shah, 
Chief Financial Officer of M/s Bhakti Gems and Jewellery Limited, to                 the best of our 
knowledge and belief hereby certify that 

1. We have reviewed the Audited Financial Statements and the cash flow statements 
for the Year ended as on 31st March, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief 
that : 

(a) These statements does not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading. 

(b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are 
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company's code of conduct 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
company pertaining to financial reporting and there are no deficiencies in the design or 
operation of internal control. 

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there are no: 

(a) Significant changes in internal control during the year ended as on 31.03.2022; 

(b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year ended as on 31.03.2022 if 
any that the same have been disclosed in the notes of the statements; 

(c) Instances of significant frauds of which we are aware, that involves management or 
other who have a significant role in the Company's internal control system. 

 
 
 
 
Monday, 05/09/2022                        Sd/-                                             Sd- 
                                                       Akshay S Mehta                        Sanketbhai R Shah  
                                                       Managing Director                    Chief Financial Officer 



 
 
 

Shikha Patel & aSSociateS            
Company Secretaries              
Shikha Patel                                                                  
M: +91 90161 21381                                                        
E: cs.spatelasso@gmail.com 
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Annexure III 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF 
BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 

 

I have examined the compliance of Corporate Governance by BHAKTI GEMS AND 
JEWELLERY LIMITED ("the Company") for the year ended on March 31, 2022, as 
stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

The compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of 
the Management. My examination was limited to a review of the procedures and 
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

I have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the 
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in India, to the extent relevant and as per the 
Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to my examination 
of the relevant records and the explanations given to me and the representation 
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Shikha Patel & Associates 

                                                                   Company Secretaries 
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made by the Management, I certify that the Company has complied with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, during the 
year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

I state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

 
FOR,  SHIKHA PATEL & ASSOCIATES 

 (PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY) 
 
 
 

     
PLACE: AHMEDABAD                                                                                                    CS SHIKHA PATEL 
DATE:07/09/2022                                                                                                              ACS NO.: 43955 

                                                                                                                               C P NO.: 16201 
                                                                                                UDIN:- A043955D000937144 
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Shikha Patel & aSSociateS            
Company Secretaries              
Shikha Patel                                                                  
M: +91 90161 21381                                                        
E: cs.spatelasso@gmail.com 
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Annexure IV  

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES' CERTIFICATE 
ON DIRECTOR'S NON-DISQUALIFICATION 

 
TO  
THE MEMBERS OF BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED 
 

This certificate is issued pursuant to clause 10(i) of the Part C of Schedule V of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 
vide circular dated May 9, 2018 of the Securities Exchange Board of India. 
 

I have examined the compliance of provisions of the aforesaid clause 10(i) of the 
Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and to the best of my information and according to the 
explanations given to me by the Company, and the declarations made by the 
Directors, I certify that none of the directors of BHAKTI GEMS AND JEWELLERY 
LIMITED ("the Company") CIN:L36910GJ2010PLC060064 having its registered 
office at 209, Shree Balaji Paragon, Near Circle - P, C.G Road, B/S Rock Regency Hotel, 
Opposite Axis Bank, Ahmedabad, Gujarat, 380009 have been debarred or disqualified 
as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed or continuing as directors of the Company 
by SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority. 
 
 
 

FOR,  SHIKHA PATEL & ASSOCIATES 
 (PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY) 

 
 
 

     
PLACE: AHMEDABAD                                                                                                    CS SHIKHA PATEL 
DATE:07/09/2022                                                                                                              ACS NO.: 43955 

                                                                                                                               C P NO.: 16201 
                                                                                                UDIN:- A043955D000934053 
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Particulars
Note 
No.

2022 2021

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
   (i) Property, Plant And Equipment 1 31,85,257                       24,55,512                                    
   (ii) Intangible Assets -                                   -                                                
   (iii) Capital Work in Progress -                                   -                                                
   (iv) Intangible assets under development -                                   -                                                
Non-Current Financial Assets
(a) Non-Current Investments -                                   -                                                
(b) Trade Receivables, Non-Current -                                   -                                                
(c) Loans, Non-Current -                                   -                                                
(d) Other Non-Current Financial Assets -                                   -                                                
Deffered tax assets (net) -                                   -                                                
Total Non Current Assets 31,85,257                       24,55,512                                    
(2) Current Assets
Inventories 15,17,17,586                 16,92,22,876                              
Current Financial Assets
(a) Current investments -                                   -                                                
(b) Trade receivables 2 13,59,27,239                 4,39,29,579                                 
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 3 4,92,127                         5,84,208                                      
(d) Bank Balance other than Cash and cash equivalents -                                   -                                                
(e) Loans, Current -                                   -                                                
(f) Other Current Financial Assets -                                   -                                                
Total Current Financial Assets 13,64,19,366                 4,45,13,787                                 
Current Tax Assets (net) -                                   -                                                
Other Current Assets 4 83,59,214                       1,00,41,831                                 
Total Current Assets 29,64,96,167                 22,37,78,494                              

Total Assets 29,96,81,425                 22,62,34,007                              

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
Equity Share Capital 5 10,02,63,450                 10,02,63,450                              
Other Equity 6 5,89,86,013                    5,03,40,474                                 
Total Equity 15,92,49,463                 15,06,03,924                              
(2) Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Non-Current Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings , non current -                                   -                                                
(b) Trade Payables , non current -                                   -                                                
(c) Other non current financial liabilities -                                   -                                                
Total Non-Current Financial Liabilities -                                   -                                                
Provision, non current -                                   -                                                
Deffered tax liabilities (net) 1,40,623                         77,743                                          
Other non current liabilities -                                   -                                                
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,40,623                         77,743                                          
Current Liabilities
Current Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings ,  current 7 13,44,94,402                 7,37,03,745                                 
(b) Trade Payables ,  current 8
(i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises -                                   -                                                
(ii) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 49,79,723                       4,81,175                                      
(c) Other current financial liabilities -                                   -                                                
Total Current Financial Liabilities 13,94,74,125                 7,41,84,920                                 
Other Current liabilities 9 3,37,714                         2,11,420                                      
Provision, current 10 4,79,500                         11,56,000                                    
Current tax liabilities (net) -                                   -                                                
Total Current Liabilities 14,02,91,338                 7,55,52,340                                 
Total Liabilities 14,04,31,961                 7,56,30,083                                 

Total Equity and Liabilities 29,96,81,425                 22,62,34,007                              
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19
Notes attached there to form an integral part of  Statement of Assets & Liabilities
As per Report of Even Date

FOR, BHAGAT & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 127250W
s/d
Sandeep H. Mulchandani s/d s/d
(Partner) Akshay S. Mehta Meet Prafulchandra Mehta
Mem. No. 144241 ( Managing Director)  (Whole Time Director)
UDIN :22144241ALEQLY1014 DIN : 02986761 DIN : 07542183

s/d
Date: 22/04/2022 Sanket R. Shah
Place: Ahmedabad (CFO)

           For, Bhakti Gems and Jewellery Limited

Bhakti Gems and Jewellery Limited
Statement of Assets & Liabilities as at 31st March , 2022
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